VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING AD HOC COMMITTEE MEETING

VILLAGE HALL COMMITTEE ROOM 801 BURLINGTON AVENUE JULY 14, 2016 - 7:00 P.M.

Chairman Gorman called the July 14, 2016 meeting of the Downers Grove Comprehensive Plan Ad Hoc Committee meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.

ROLL CALL:

- **PRESENT:** Chairman Dave Gorman, Marge Earl, Irene Hogstrom, Ed Kalina, John Luka, Daiva Majauskas, Mark Thoman, Jim Wilkinson
- **ABSENT:** Carine Acks
- **STAFF:** Community Development Director Stan Popovich and Planner Rebecca Leitschuh
- VISITORS: Devin Lavigne with Houseal Lavigne Associates; Amy Gassen, 5320 Benton, Downers Grove; Don Rickard, 4735 Main St., Downers Grove; Rich Kulovany, 6825 Camden Rd., Downers Grove

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – JUNE 1, 2016

MINUTES OF MAY 4, 2016, WERE APPROVED ON MOTION BY MR. WILKINSON, SECONDED BY MS. HOGSTROM. MOTION CARRIED BY VOICE VOTE OF 8-0.

REVIEW COUNCIL DISCUSSION ON DOWNTOWN FOCUS AREA

Mr. Popovich noted that the Ad Hoc committee discussed and forwarded its Downtown Focus Area Plan to the Village's Plan Commission meeting on June 27, 2016 and the Plan Commission, after discussion, decided to create a fourth sub-area in the downtown – the Center Area – with the recommendation that building heights be three to four stories versus the current 70 feet. Mr. Popovich shared the discussion held at the July 12, 2016 Village Council meeting which, in summary, was that Council was more supportive of the Plan Commission's recommendation but the exact boundaries for the sub-area were yet to be determined by the council and no clear direction was provided to staff. Therefore, the discussion on the downtown development regulations was pulled from tonight's agenda and will be rescheduled to a future date, most likely the September meeting.

A gallery of photos of the downtown was placed on the overhead with Mr. Popovich explaining how the downtown changed over the past 20 years.

<u>COMPREHENSIVE PLAN REVIEW (Chapter 5)</u>

In prefacing the discussion for Chapter 5, Devin Lavigne with Houseal Lavigne Associates, asked for input on the following two corridors – commenting that the 75^{th} Street corridor was very compact with a couple of malls, while the 63^{rd} Street corridor was a mixture of residential and commercial. Mr. Lavigne proceeded to discuss the existing conditions for the two corridors listed below.

A. <u>63rd Street Charrette</u>: Mr. Luka recalled he had mentioned earlier that the retailers were saying the western gateway to the village at 63rd Street and Woodward Avenue was not a major corridor and that the existing large retail center there was distressed, had significant amounts of parking, and included a variety of different uses. He suggested a change of use for the area to give developers an opportunity to construct mixed use or, as another alternative, shrink the retail space, add office, townhomes and/or rental units. The lot dimension was also a challenge there.

Suggestions included sprucing up the out-buildings, push the retail closer to the street and back fill it with rental units. Seven Bridges, on a smaller scale, was also discussed or possibly joining with the Village of Woodridge. Other suggestions included beautifying the corridor with parkway trees since there was a lack of them currently. A comment was made that there was some transition to a defined commercial look on the east side of Main Street and on the south side of 63rd Street.

For the unincorporated area on 63rd Street, Ms. Majauskas recommended the village trying to better control how the area gets developed or have some building codes in place, because to her, the county was more lenient as to what was allowed. Dialog followed that inserting townhomes or row homes fronting 63rd Street with some rear access would be better than some of the single-family homes along 63rd Street.

Chairman Gorman raised conversation that in the unincorporated areas where office use existed, there could be some lot consolidation to create larger parcels. The intersection was also signalized at Woodward. However, comments followed on the challenges that a proposed Walgreens experienced and, the fact that the developer eventually pulled the project.

Other observations included that the Green Knolls Center at Main and 63rd had a rear entrance for uses located in the basement of the mall. Someone mentioned taking some of the residential frontage and placing them into an "L" configuration. Other comments included that the entire shopping area had low appeal – it sat low and had poor visibility. Contrarily, others stated the CVS was the improvement for the site and the landscaping had been increased. Last comments included that the street was a challenge because the village did not control the land.

B. <u>75th Street Charrette</u>: Mr. Popovich identified the area for discussion. General comments included the mall at the northwest corner of Lemont & 75th was challenged by the number of property owners (15 to 16 owners) and the fact that it sat too deep and there was a lack of cohesion of single ownership. Asked what could be done with that many owners, Mr. Lavigne stated the owners would have to be given incentives to redevelop the entire center with another developer. He thought a town center would be nice. Members cited the Promenade in Bolingbrook or a similar development, such as the new one in Burr Ridge, etc. as developments to consider .

Comments also followed that the value of the land and the houses around such developments had to have residents with disposable income for such developments and this site was very different. While Ms. Majauskas concurred, she added that if rental units were being placed above retail, the owners of those units may not support the retail and, therefore, more townhomes probably needed to be constructed instead. Hearing that this mall had similar square footage as the Promenade, Mr. Thoman suggested that a similar mall be created with a smaller version across the street. However, Mr. Lavigne stated that a residential component may have to be added to it, citing the Metropolis located in Indiana. Adding yet another comment, Ms. Earl pointed out the Randhurst Mall in Mt. Prospect did something similar with residential but now the mall was falling "flat" and there was not much interest in it.

Someone suggested inserting restaurants or bars to the area, wherein the conversation turned to the challenges of a restaurant located in a residential location. Ms. Majauskas reminded the committee that it had to consider what would draw people from other surrounding communities – "make it pretty, nice and interesting."

As to how the this area could be tackled, Mr. Lavigne explained it was suggested to staff to visualize it as a fully redeveloped, mix-use center, with some form of management association recommendation that would take care of the maintenance, unify the hours of operations, and coordinate efforts for snow removal, etc. He cited the property across the street as an example.

When asked what resources staff would have to assist in developing a landlord association as a first step, Mr. Popovich indicated the Economic Development Corporation (EDC) did reach out to the property owners prior but that staff could assist in the process as long as there was a vision for the long-term. Mr. Thoman then confirmed the committee would be recommending that the village create the vision and the EDC could approach the landlords. However, Ms. Earl cautioned members that redevelopment of the corner site would have to be careful so as not to cause the other corner to decline; others concurred.

Turning to the text of Section 5, a suggestion was made to update the text on page 48 with the new sign ordinance language; page 49 – mention branding under the Facade Improvement Program; simplify the gateway signs; remove the Downtown Downers Grove sign on Fairview since it was confusing; encourage the redevelopment of buildings within the malls to be located closer to the sidewalk (citing the Standard Market as an example), with parking in the rear. Mr. Lavigne proceeded to discuss the recommendation for using parking maximums versus minimum parking requirements, whereby half of the parking would be placed in front of the retail and the other half in the rear, as overflow, with stronger street orientation/placement. The committee agreed to include this topic in the comprehensive plan.

A question was raised by Ms. Earl as to whether the village should have a committee to review the architectural details of buildings that come in for redevelopment, or whether staff should be working with the applicant before he/she meets with the Plan Commission. Mr. Lavigne noted where the development guidelines were currently discussed in the comprehensive plan and recommended to develop design guidelines for other commercial areas apart from the downtown.

<u>Chapter 6</u>: On Page 60 - update the north/south traffic flow (Belmont/Metra); Page 61 - update the bicycle and pedestrian plan; Page 63 - confirm bike trails plan with county and public works; Page 66 - update the Public Transit Plan. A suggestion was made to push for a code that

would allow legal bicycling on sidewalks but yielding to pedestrians, not including the Central Business District.

Per a question about the sidewalk completion program, Mr. Popovich indicated that the village completed the sidewalk matrix and now the village was going neighborhood by neighborhood or when residents requested a sidewalk. However, one member pointed out the matrix was not completed and the village "got into construction and switched gears to maintenance." Challenges of some sidewalks were discussed among various members, with the point being to complete the connections so pedestrians could navigate better. Page 65 – update the bus routes and remove mention of the shuttle; update Metra ridership numbers (if available).

Next, the discussion moved toward unused commuter parking spaces and having more accessibility for Vespas, motorcycles and smaller zip cars to promote small use vehicles. Someone recalled their suggestion for a potential pedway underpass at Main Street. A lengthy discussion followed regarding moving the Fairview station further east in order to allow the gates to go up and traffic continue over the railroad tracks.

<u>Chapter 7</u>: Page 73 – in reviewing the Hidden Lake map, someone brought up the idea of having a parking entrance/access off of Lacey or Finley which could become a community benefit and tie it into existing paths. A question arose about annexing Maple Grove Forest Preserve. Mr. Popovich stated he would forward the park maps to the park district to see if there were any updates that could be added and also update the DuPage County Regional Trail System map. Again, Ms. Majauskas emphasized the need for the village to plant more trees, shrubs and flowers to make the village attractive to people.

For stormwater control, a suggestion included planting natural wild flowers or creating natural areas in the parkways (with consideration of height). Page 80 – Ms. Hogstrom cautioned staff about the invasive Japanese Knotweed. Mr. Thoman recalled he brought up a prior discussion about having a mandatory parkway tree planting program and asked if language could be inserted into the comprehensive plan where the village is more proactive in replacing its tree canopy. Page 78 – Wooded Areas – add another paragraph about replacing parkway trees that are lost and give homeowners a variety of tree species to choose from. Another suggestion: continuously connect the chapters to the comprehensive plan; and stress the importance of the Belmont Prairie nature preserve (Nature Preserve Commission oversees).

<u>Chapter 8</u>: Mr. Popovich quickly reviewed the updates to Chapter 8. Page 89, under Public Works, the second paragraph discussing "stormwater" it was suggested to have the text in a more prominent place or role. Others thought the section should be moved into the Open Space and Natural Features but also mention such natural plantings as being good for the village's stormwater system. Asked if an entirely new section called "Environmental Issues" could be drafted, staff stated it was already addressed in Chapter 7 and the section could be re-named.

Dialog followed whether the village was still considering a Civic Center Plan, wherein Mr. Popovich mentioned that there was still dialog about it and it was a good idea to leave it in the plan but modify the paragraph with current ideas. Staff believed the term "Civic Center Campus" fit more appropriately since some of the buildings were separate from each other.

Per staff, the colors on Page 91 would be updated. Dialog followed on whether storm shelters should automatically be constructed after a weather-related event.

PUBLIC COMMENT

The chairman opened up the meeting to public comment: None received. (Mr. Thoman suggested to move public comment up earlier in the meeting due to the late hour.)

Chairman Gorman stated the next meeting will be August 3, 2016. Ms. Earl stated that when discussing the Key Focus Areas at the August 3rd meeting, that while specific sites are identified for redevelopment, she stated there were nothing identified on what the village wanted to save in the comprehensive plan, citing the village had already lost some significant buildings. Regarding the Fairview train station area, she also suggested to unify the street lights so the area looked like it was an activity area.

ADJOURNMENT

THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED AT 9:35 P.M. ON MOTION BY MR. LUKA, SECONDED BY MR. KALINA. MOTION CARRIED BY VOICE VOTE OF 8-0.

Respectfully submitted, /s/ Celeste K. Weilandt (As transcribed by MP-3 audio)

VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS JUNE 22, 2016 MINUTES

Call to Order

Chairperson Earl called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.

Roll Call

Present: Mr. Domijan, Ms. Eberhardt, Mr. Kulovany, Ms. Majauskas, Mr. McCann, Mr. Werner, Ch. Earl Absent: None A quorum was established.

Staff:	Stan Popovich, Director of Community Development
	Scott Williams, Village Planner

Also Present: Bill Styczynski, Studio 21 Architects, 221 8th Street, Downers Grove, Petitioner Paul and Jean Boyd, 5312 Florence Avenue, Owners

Minutes of March 23, 2016 meeting

Mr. Werner moved, seconded by Mr. Domijan, to approve the minutes of the March 23, 2016 meeting as corrected. All in favor. The Motion passed unanimously.

Meeting Procedures

Chairperson Earl asked those in attendance to silence their phones. She explained the function of the Zoning Board of Appeals, and reviewed the procedures to be followed during the public hearing, verifying with Staff that all proper notices have been published with regard to the case on the Agenda. She noted that members of the Zoning Board of Appeals have had an opportunity to review the materials provided by Staff and in some cases have visited the site in question. In order for a requested petition to be approved there must be a majority of four votes in favor of approval. Chairperson Earl added that the Zoning Board of Appeals has authority to grant petitions without further recommendations being made to the Village Council. She called upon anyone intending to speak before the Board on the Agenda item to rise and be sworn in, as the public information portion of the meeting is an evidentiary hearing and comments made during this portion of the meeting are considered testimony. She said that Staff would make its presentation first, followed by comments by the Petitioner. She added that if anyone in the audience wishes to speak either in favor of or in opposition to the petition, they would be able to do so following the Petitioner's presentation. When the public participation portion of the meeting is closed, the Board will deliberate on the information provided and vote to either approve or deny the petition.

.....

16-ZBA-0004:

A petition seeking a variation to allow an outdoor fireplace to face the street. The property is currently zoned R-4, Residential Detached House 4. The property is located on the northwest corner of Florence Avenue

and 6th Street and is commonly known as 5312 Florence Avenue, Downers Grove, IL (PIN 09-09-304-029). Bill Styczynski, Studio 21 Architects, Petitioner, and Paul & Jean Boyd, Owners.

Staff's Presentation:

Mr. Scott Williams introduced himself as Planner for the Village of Downers Grove. The property in question is located at the northwest corner of Florence Avenue and 6th Street and is an R-4 Residential Detached House 4 corner lot. He showed an overhead projection of the site that depicts the patio on which the variance is being requested. He said they are considering the required street setback, and the original home is nonconforming. The relief requested is for a 22.6" setback from the front property line while the required setback is 25 feet from the front property line. He referenced a drawing provided by the owner depicting the "street yard," which differs from a "street setback," and which shows the location of the existing patio that is to be replaced by a new patio. The petitioner's request is for a variance for the fireplace that will be located in a pergola with a four-foot tall fence around the new patio. The fireplace is not permitted in a street yard.

Mr. Williams then showed a slide of the west elevation. He read from the Village's Municipal Code requirements for a wood burning outdoor fireplace. Since the fireplace is one component of the over-all proposal to provide shade, it would be constructed on the proposed patio under the pergola. This would encroach 2.5' into the required street setback. He displayed photographs of the building, saying that the last time the Zoning Board of Appeals considered an accessory structure proposed for a street yard was case 15-ZBA-0006, which made essentially the same argument as the subject petition, that accessory structures are not allowed in street yards.

Mr. Williams then reviewed why Staff is recommending denial of the petitioner's request. As stated in Staff's report dated June 22, 2016, 16-ZBA-0004, Page 3, the Planning Staff finds that there are no unique circumstances associated with this property that warrant granting the requested variation for the following reasons:

1. The issues resulting in the request for an outdoor fireplace in the street yard are the result of actions by the petitioner in creating a house addition that has taken up much of the rear yard closest to the interior side yard.

2. The granting of this variation would create a precedent that would allow accessory structures of substantial height within the street yard for residential properties throughout the Village where no physical difficulty or practical hardship with the property exists. The location of an outdoor fireplace in the street yard erodes the semi-public nature of the street yard by bringing private activities into the semi-public space.

3. The issues resulting in the request are not unique to the property and could be applicable to all other lots in the Village, not just corner lots with a nonconforming setback.

Staff believes that the petition does not meet the criteria for a variation and that there are no unique circumstances or hardship for granting the variation.

Mr. Domijan asked if the patio work is permitted, without the addition of the fireplace. Mr. Williams said that the patio would be permitted. It is the fireplace that does not meet Code requirements. He further replied that the pergola does meet the requirements.

Mr. Kulovany asked if they would be allowed to put in a ground level fire pit closer to the house, and Mr. Williams said they would not because it would not meet ventilation requirements. He was then asked to show where the fireplace could be placed without encroachment and he said that it could not be placed in the street yard since it would violate the Code requirements. Mr. Kolovany then asked if the petitioner could install outside shades on the west end of the pergola to be raised up and down. Mr. Williams said he thinks if it is vertical it could be allowed, and he would look at that as it is of a temporary nature.

There being no other questions for Staff, Chairperson Earl called upon the Petitioner to make his presentation.

Petitioner's Presentation:

Mr. Bill Styczynski of Studio 21 Architects introduced himself as Petitioner for this case. He is also a resident of the Village. He stated that the Ordinance does not designate a difference between a front yard and a corner side yard. Both setbacks are treated equally, which is a 25' setback from each property line. He indicated he would never advocate putting an outdoor fireplace in a street setback in front of a house, as it does not belong there. In this case, the outdoor fireplace can be perceived as being in a rear yard as the fireplace would appear to be in the rear yard, although technically in the street setback. They are requesting a 10% or 2.6' setback to allow the fireplace in their chosen location. He said that he is asking the Zoning Board to review the case on its individual merits, and in doing so they would not set up a precedent for future residents wishing an outdoor fireplace.

Mr. Styczynski then discussed the street yard saying that they agree with the Village's identification of the street yard; however, in extensively reviewing the Village's Zoning Ordinance they could find no restriction in placing a fireplace in a street yard, versus street setback. He listed some of the many restrictions included in a street yard; however, when the Petitioner asked Staff to refer them to the section of the Zoning Ordinance regarding street yards, Staff referred them to Sec. 14.100B which Mr. Styczynski said establishes what is allowed in street setbacks. It states that a fireplace is not allowed in a street setback. He noted that in no way is there reference to this being in a street yard. They are therefore asking for the variation of 2.6' into the required minimum street setback that would allow the fireplace to be placed 10' from the home and a minimum amount into the setback. He said they find this to be a reasonable request and is within the guidelines of an Administrative Adjustment as stated in the Village's Zoning Ordinance. He thinks it sets a tone as to what a reasonable request is for a variance.

The Petitioner said he thinks that Staff feels this is not simply a street setback issue, but a street yard issue as well, and also is concerned with precedent. Mr. Styczynski explained that in their understanding of the Ordinance restrictions, they believe this is something that would be a variance for a minor adjustment so the owner can provide shading to use their outside patio. Other designs would have provided more shade, but would require multiple variations. They designed the petition so that the only variance relates to the fireplace, which was designed to be a shading feature of the patio.

Mr. Styczynski then reviewed the Staff remarks in Staff's report dated June 22, 2016. He noted that his letter of May 20, 2016 addresses the Standards and Review Criteria. He commented that Staff expressed a concern with height. The pergola structure is 10' tall, with the fireplace chimney 13' tall. The Ordinance allows an accessory structure to be 23' high, and he doesn't think height is a valid issue. With regard to the uniqueness of the property, Mr. Styczynski noted

that the property was built in 1928, which would have conditions unique to this specific lot. Current ordinances could not anticipate every condition likely to occur, and that is why the variation process is in place. If this were a teardown, they would probably not be looking for variances. He noted that the owners are not doing this for monetary gain. Lack of shading is the issue. The pergola adds shading and the fireplace will add more shading. Trees can provide shading but it will be many years before they can provide that shading. He said that each case should be looked on based on its individual merits.

As for the character of the locale, Mr. Styczynski noted that the proposed location of the fireplace would be perceived as being located in the rear yard, or 22.6' from the side lot.

Mr. Styczynski said that granting this variance would allow the exterior fireplace to be built as part of the outdoor space. Granting the variance does not allow for any special privilege beyond what would normally be allowed to any other property owner if desired, which would be to add an outdoor fireplace as an outdoor amenity. If others were to submit petitions of this nature, it would be the responsibility of the Zoning Board of Appeals to review each of those petitions based on their individual merits.

Mr. Styczynski commented that one other issue to consider is hardship. He said if they had the existing house without the addition built in the rear, Staff would agree that a fireplace in the rear would not require a variance. However, if the owners had hypothetically built the fireplace and wanted to add on a mud-room to the rear of the house, by using the definition of "street yard" as interpreted by Staff, the question would be whether the fireplace would remain or would have to be removed to build the mud room. Basically, he said that given the proposal as submitted, the way the fireplace would be used will not adversely affect the surrounding neighborhood.

Mr. McCann said that it appears according to Mr. Styczynski that the Code is not addressing a street yard or a street setback. Mr. Popovich replied that according to Mr. Styczynski's interpretation, an owner could build a detached garage in front of their home as long as they remained within the setback. The Village, however, has consistently interpreted this as not allowing detached garages in the "street yard" as it is not permitted by Code.

Ms. Majauskas asked if they are saying that because a fireplace is not allowed, the Administrative Adjustment cannot be allowed, and Staff said that was correct.

Mr. McCann said the question appears to be whether the Code allows it to be built in a street yard, and if it does, can it be allowed 2.6' into the setback.

Mr. Kulovany asked if the petitioner understands that the Board does not have to grant this variance, and Mr. Styczynski said he did. Mr. Kulovany then inquired as to the Petitioner's plan if the variance is not granted. Mr. Styczynski replied that he would have to discuss that with the owners. If that were to occur he thinks the Village Ordinance should be clarified to look at a separate front street setback from a side street setback on a corner piece of property. Most Village's have that specification.

Chairperson Earl responded that the Ordinance language was reviewed and updated recently. She said that this request is a straight out variation, and this is very different than the exceptions that have been reviewed over the past years. Administrative Adjustments are not unused tools and have been conducted over the past year. Mr. Styczynski acknowledged that there are exceptions on what can be done in a street yard, but because a fireplace is not specifically prohibited, in their view it should be allowed. Chairperson Earl replied that for some time, open fire pits were not allowed at all in the Village.

Mr. Domijan explained that in the absence of specific language, the Board cannot rewrite the language of the Ordinance.

Mr. McCann asked whether the encroachment is necessary to get the fireplace 15' from the house, and Mr. Styczynski said it is in order to get it 10' from the house.

Ms. Majauskas asked whether they the fireplace could be made smaller, and Mr. Styczynski said they could not make it small enough, or rotate it.

There being no further questions or comments, Chairperson Earl called for anyone in the audience who wished to speak either in favor of or in opposition to the petition.

1. Paul Boyd of 5312 Florence, owner of the property, said he was present with his wife. He thanked the Board for their time. He said they moved into the Village in 1999 and showed some photographs of the house from when they purchased it to the remodel in 2011. He noted that they are only seeking a variance of 2'6" and he also reviewed the Standards and Review Criteria of the Village's Zoning Ordinance.

Mr. Boyd said that he thought the intent of Section 14.100B was to prevent people from building all types of structures in their front yard area. He felt the strict interpretation by Staff of the Code is contrary to the spirit of the Code, while their project is in line with the intent of the Code.

Mr. Kulovany asked what their plan would be if this were denied. Mr. Boyd replied they would need to do something to make that space useful and cannot survive when the heat is very high. They may have to redesign the pergola or reposition the fireplace. They do not know at this time. They feel that the proposal submitted to the Board is the best approach for the site. Mr. Boyd said that precedence would not be an issue as he thinks there are very few lots that would qualify for this type of request.

2. An adjacent neighbor voiced support for the request to allow an outdoor fireplace in the street yard.

There being no further questions, Chairperson Earl closed the opportunity for future public comment.

Board Deliberation:

Chairperson Earl explained that the rules for variations are much stricter than for exceptions. She sympathizes with the petitioner as she also lives on the northwest corner of Florence Avenue near the subject property. It is not a unique circumstance in her opinion. She asked if there were any contrasting opinions.

Ms. Majauskas said she loves the design and it is beautiful and stunning. However, the Code does not ask whether it is stunning or not. She would love to speak in favor of the request; however, when it comes down to a decision, a fireplace is a complete luxury addition. In her time on the Board, no one has ever come in or said they need a garage in their front yard, and the

Board consistently says no. She is having a difficult time saying yes to something that is luxury. She has to defer to Staff, as this has been interpreted one way in the past. Many homes have lost trees, and planting more trees is not an instant gratification. Added trees would eventually solve the problem. She has a hard time saying yes to the fireplace, even though people in the neighborhood are not opposed to it.

Mr. McCann said he appreciates how Staff has interpreted Sec. 14.100B. But that section is entitled "Setbacks" which is the 25'. He referred to Chart 14-1 that contains a table referencing fireplaces that are permitted in certain setbacks. The question is how to interpret it, and the drafter doesn't provide a clear understanding. He has looked at other parts of the Code related to the distance from a house. He sees nothing for fireplaces as they apply to street yards. He said if it is a permitted use there is nothing barring putting it in a front yard as long as it is within the setback. They are dealing with whether or not they can have a fireplace in a specific space, and staff has interpreted this in good faith. He, however, sees nothing in Sec. 14.100B regarding street yards but only regarding street yard setbacks. It seems to him that this should probably go back to Staff for consideration as to whether it should get an Administrative Adjustment based on the 10% figure. He thinks they are trying to apply the Ordinance as it is expressly written.

Mr. Kulovany commented that if this was brand new construction they would not be having this discussion. At one time these were considered two front yards on a corner lot. He doesn't see the differentiation between street yards and setbacks.

Mr. McCann replied that he thinks there is a street yard, and there is a street setback. He thinks the only issue is whether they get the 2.6' requested.

Ms. Majauskas said there is a list of permitted obstructions, on Chart 14-4 that doesn't show fireplaces. Mr. McCann said that on page 14-5 they show fire pits as permitted obstructions. Ms. Majauskas said she thinks this still encroaches into the setback, and the street yard is irrelevant.

Mr. McCann replied that Staff's position is that a fireplace is not allowed anywhere in street yards. Mr. Williams said that was correct.

Mr. McCann explained that "street yard" now defines any yard that abuts a street, so there's no front yard or side yard. The concern is that if it is allowed here, they open the door to someone building a fire pit in the front yard.

Mr. Kulovany said they are looking at a 2'6" encroachment, which sounds like 10%, however it represents almost 42% of the 6' structure. He asked whether this would be allowed if the structure was 42" wide.

Chairperson Earl said she is concerned that the fireplace will give the effect of being in the front yard. She suggested they could use temporary shades in the pergola, and questioned whether the fireplace is essential to the project.

Ms. Majauskas asked whether the shading of the porch is something the Board should be considering. Chairperson Earl said the shading could be done perhaps in other ways than installing a fireplace.

Mr. Kulovany said when he first drove by the location he drove by Florence and this looked like part of the back yard. Then he went down 6th Street. He liked the improvement to the house with the beautiful addition; however, that created the situation that has negatively impacted this request. He said looking at the views with the masonry, pergola, etc., it also looks like a room addition. The public nature of side yards and corners is to maintain public view. He would hope that those who lost their ash trees would install replacement trees, or call the Village for parkway trees. He said he would be voting against this as the Board must vote based on the Ordinance.

Mr. McCann said he thinks this is consideration for an Administrative Adjustment.

Mr. Kulovany moved to deny the accessory structure variation for the subject property for case 16-ZBA-0004 commonly known as 5312 Florence Avenue. Mr. Domijan seconded the Motion.

AYES: Mr. Kulovany, Mr. Domijan, Ms. Eberhardt, Ms. Majauskas, Ch. Earl

NAYS: Mr. McCann, Mr. Werner

Motion to deny carries 5:2.

•••••

Community Development Director Stanley Popovich said that there was a variation granted for 4326 Prince Street in June of last year. The petitioner has not yet installed the sign that was granted for the variation. The variation granted was a 5' variation off the setback. The petitioner has been unable to install the sign as she has been out of the country for most of the year, and has now requested a six-month extension. Notice on this was not required.

Mr. McCann moved to extend the date to obtain a permit for the variation in case 15-ZBA-0004 to 180 days, until on or about December 24, 2016. The Motion was seconded by Mr. Kulovany.

AYES: Mr. McCann, Mr. Kulovany, Mr. Domijan, Ms. Eberhardt, Ms. Majauskas, Mr. Werner, Ch. Earl

NAYS: None

The motion carried unanimously.

•••••

ADJOURNMENT:

Ms. Majauskas moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mr. Domijan.

All in favor. The Motion carried unanimously.

Chairperson Earl adjourned the meeting at 8:47 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Zoning Board of Appeals June 22, 2016

Tonie Harrington Recording Secretary